








CHAIRMAN'S REPORT

Another year has passed and once more we ar

hope to have had a visit from our Patron, H.R.H. The Duch
very busy schedule of engagements, has found time to hm :se:’

During the year we have been saddened and sh
General Michael Skinner, the Comptroller a
Administrator. Also by the tragic death of Micha
many years. Our sympathies go to their famil
bereavement during the year.

nd of Carole Spencer our assi
sistant

.el McCree, who had been a lay clerk for

ies and to all those who have suffered

Mrs. Hallums, who used to do such beautiful embroidery f

‘ . ry for the Cathedral, has |
legacy of £200 to the Friends, and £2,000 has been given in memory of Kathy and%ftt)g
Martin. By request this will be used for funding Choir projects. £428 has been received in
memory of Kathleen Merchant. We are very grateful for all these bequests.

After weeks of dust and scaffolding, the Quire stalls have finally emerged, cleaned and lit-
up with new candlestick lamps and concealed lighting highlighting the ceilings. The Quire
transepts have new chandeliers and spotlights have been focused on the tombs and the
wheel of Fortune. The 200 new chairs in the Quire transepts, provided by the Friends,
have been much appreciated. Also at the request of the Dean and Chapter, our
contribution towards the upkeep of the Garth has been doubled. The Friends can be very
proud of their achievements this year.

As before, the A.G.M. will be held at St. Nicholas Church. This year, lunch and tea will be
at the King's Head Hotel, opposite St. Nicholas Church. The private dining room with a
bar available, will seat about 80, so early application is advisable. In order to save postage,
tickets will not be issued this year. Reservations and payment for lunch and tea should be
made in the usual way, on the enclosed application form.

This year we will be saying farewell to Major John Melhuish, who is not standing for re-
election to the Council. John has given many years sterling service to the Friends, having
been both Vice-Chairman and Chairman. We thank him for his guidance and expertise
and wish him well. Col. J. Yerburgh and Mr. N. Taylor both resigned duringthe yeardueto
pressure of work. We were sorry to lose them and thank them for all their help. One of the
vacancies was filled by the co-option of Mrs. C. Foreman, who we hope will be formally
elected to the Council at the A.G.M.

We are grateful to Mr. Dudley Moakes, our General Secretary who kegps the books and
copes with all the queries, and to Mrs. Hana Collins who nobly stepped into the breach as
a ‘temp’ to keep the flag flying.

Finally, | give my grateful thanks to all the members of the council for their hard work and
support during the year and | look forward to seeing you all on Saturday, 19th june.

Joan Sharp
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century with calcium Caseinate  wi :
improvement though the colour £ "‘"I 2 shelter coat. The result is a considerable

LIGHTING

Whilst working on the vaults, Dave Baker : i

; s carpenters also adapted the boys’ reading
(1e?ks to accommodatg the new Quire stall lighting, whilst Trevor Windsor’s electricians
installed the new spotlights and clerestory fluorescent tubes.

The latter scheme is a restoration of the fluorescents which were installed by my
predecessor in the early 1950°s of which the Head Verger has a photographic record. The
system r'ell out of use and it no longer became possible to obtain the huge ‘valves’ (similar
to old fashioned radio valves), which controlled the dimmer in the Chequer Yard.
/Ldvances in modern electronics allowed us to carry out a similar function at a fraction of
the cost.

At the time of writing the new lighting is all but complete, though a small number of
adjustments remain to be made. The scheme should provide flexibility for future liturgical
use with special “incident” lighting on some of the more significant decorative features for
the enjoyment of visitors and tourists.

QUIRE LEOPARDS

The penultimate part of the works has been the cleaning of the 19th century leopards
behind the stalls by a team of conservators working under the direction of Christopher
Oldenberg.

Many of us have been critical of the drab appearance of the 19th century paint, indeed
there have even been discussions as to whether it should be swept away or repainted.
Removal of the overlying coats of dirty varnish, itself a hi_ghly complex task as.the black
lines on the golden leopards tended to move with the varnish, hasrevealedthe nchpess of
Scott’s original scheme. A deliberate attempt has been rpade to avoid over-cleaning the
painted surfaces. Some Friends will remember the glaring colour contrast revealed by

earlier cleaning tests.

The conservators have also spent much time in trying to achieve an overall colour
balance, a difficult task as the paiptmgs ha_d clearly been submitted to severgl re-
varnishings and re-touchings, for which too often new work was toned to match existing

dirty surfaces.

WHEEL OF FORTUNE
Finally, two weeks afte
Wheel of Fortune, itse

England.
A recent report from Jo Darrah of the Victoria and Albert Museum has revealed the

r Easter, Perry Lithgow will be returning to clean and conserve the
If one of the most important 13th century paintings remaining in
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foil — now much corroded — in ‘FORTUNE’s’ crown.

When carrying out a campaign of cleaning surfaces whether these are on the Organ case
Crossing Ceiling, the Quire Leopards or the Wheel of Fortune, one can never bema, 2
the start as to the final appearance. Phasing the works has allowed us the op \ 2
make slight adjustments to provide overall colour balance between the works of the
different periods.

Once the Wheel of Fortune is completed | hope that the Quire will once again — as the
heart of the Cathedral — provide a fitting setting for the liturgy.

sophistication of the techniques employed by the original painters, including the use

FUTURE WORKS

Toturnto the future, specifications have already been prepared for cleaning the walls and
vaults of the Eastern Transepts this summer. The work will include the stabilisation of the
mediaeval tile paving in front of the Oratory following the successful conservation by
Plowden & Smith of a similar pavement in the adjacent bay.

The following year we hope to tackle the Presbytery and thus complete all works to the
Eastern Arms of the Cathedral.

Elsewhere it is hoped that the programme of relighting can continue whilst plans are in
course of preparation for major works to the Crypt which once again will probably be
phased over a 3-5 year period.

These will include cleaning and conservation of all mediaeval vault paintings, cleaning of
the stonework, re-rendering of the rubble walls (a small trial can be seen in St. Ithamar’s
Chapel in the south east corner), repaving, relighting, environmental control, rainwater
disposal and archaeological investigations.

The initial programmes have been received with favour by the Fabric Advisory
Committee and also by officers of English Heritage.

All the above proposals are subject to finance. The recent success of the Appeal, the
generosity of the Friends and the substantial grant aid now being received from English

Heritage have transformed the situation since | prepared my initial report on the
Cathedral in 1983.

Martin Caroe
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of maintaining the fabric, also make us focus on numbers. But the first divic
in terms of numbers know very well that very large numbers of visitors
problems. This is not justin terms of the security and preservation of the buildine
the increasing difficulty of treating people as people. Once a Cathedral fails to

every individual who comes through its doors as a person rather than asat ’
expect that person to recognise the Cathedral for what it really is. (6

We know that people, to be satisfied and fulfilled, have to have SOMe Conce
relationship, of belonging to a community. Sociologists tell us that three in i,
least are necessary for a recognisable community. The first is a deﬁnabs'wh :
Community is more identifiable in a village which has clear boundaries than inasub i
sprawl. The second ingredient is some kind of common purpose and there is noth:
the threat of the stability of a community to provide a focus of that. Many communig;
this part of the world have been threatened by the Rail Link to service the Channel Ty,
Within each community people from all walks of life, whose stability and pProperty ar
threatened by such proposals, are drawn together in a common purpose. Even a vi e, )
Vicar discovers a common sympathy in the whole community when the church, which o
few people may attend Sunday by Sunday, is threatened with collapse. The closureofa
school can equally focus this kind of purpose on a community. The third ingredient is
some kind of common pattern of life by which the community is enabled to function. Ina
neighbourhood community patterns of public transport, the hours that the pub is oper

what you can buy at the Post Office or village shop, are all focuses of a reliable pattern of

life on which the whole community depends. Take one away and the very heart of
community life is threatened. o
It these three ingredients of community life — place, purpose and pattern — are essential

to community life there are a further two factors by which the individual relates to the
community. The first one is that a community, if it is worthwhile, provides an individual
with significance. In suburban life social or interest groupings have to be formed in order %

10 provide this significance where community is not identifiable on a geographical basis,
“n individual needs to be able to know that he has worth in the sight of others and,
‘herefore, a position in the local sports club, or the Rotary Club, or the Mothers’ Union,
provides them with the significance and worth that they need and this can only be
discovered by an expression of community. The second factor for the individual is the
needforsolidarity. An individual needs to feel that he belongs to a community which can
support him or her but to which they can also make a contribution. There are common
lactorsin any kind of community life which mean that to belong to the group actually gives
necessary stability and security to life. So the individual needs significance and solidarity.

There is much more, of course, that can be said about community and the needs oC
individuals within them but I do believe this is a useful starting point when we consider the
way in which religion impinges upon people. In the Anglican tradition this has been
recognised by the parochial system. Church life in the community as a whole is n &,
something divorced from it but is woven into the pattern of life which makes community
possible. When the parish as anidentifiable geographical unitis no longer viable then ve
strong bonds arise with suburban congregations who are identified with a church buil
with a very clear and sometimes authoritarian purpose and certainly with a pattern of
of meetings, of worship and of commitment. Thus in this way the individual

significance and solidarity, and these things are some of the most important vehicles
the gospel.

Intimes past attempts have been made to build up the ideal God centred community:
Benedictine tradition, on which most of our ancient Cathedrals are built, recogn!
need for the kind of community life which | have been describing which made God

at the centre of everything. | have recently been reading some accounts of &
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nine to five location whereas for others it may have become only a
punctuated by worship. In other words we are looking for a cohes
whole of this central team can be identified.

The second circle of community life within the Cathedral | would
watchers. These are the many anonymous worshippers, together w
needy who find their way into a Cathedral, and those who ped\apsmw g
Cathedral on a regular basis for some errand, or for some devotional purpose.
can these people be regarded as members of a community? Do they have
significance within the Cathedral or does the very size of the Cathedral and.
impersonal nature have the very opposite effect? Do they simply belongto a bui ¥
there a sense of belonging to other people? Do they regard themselves as i
visitors even if they come very often, or are they recognised as users of a Cathedral ;
legitimate sense? At the heart of these questions is, of course, a sensitive area of al
people to have a proper anonymity while, at the same time, encouraging them to k
that they belong. One of the quite proper functions of a Cathedral is to allow peopleu
making their own pilgrimage or expressing their needs at their own pace, in mm
time. But every Cathedral needs somebody who has a ministry to watchers and who can
help them interpret their pilgrimage so that they might gradually become part of a
community. | stress that because it is easy to leave aside those who at first sight seem to
have little contribution to make to all our busyness. 58

The third circle are the occasionals, many of whom are committed Christians within their
own parish churches. However, they come to the Cathedral for the great occasions
possibly unaware of the community that surrounds the Cathedral and they are oftenthere
for diocesan occasions, conscious only of their relationship with the Bishop and perhaps
one or two people at the Cathedral. By and large they have little idea of what goesonata
Cathedral or its part in the mission of God. These too need to be able to feel a sense of
belonging to the Cathedral and their part in its community life. Some dioceses have
established a link between the Cathedral and every parish and Cathedral news finds its

way into many parish magazines. Some Cathedrals offer a newsheet which reachesthese
people. We need to ask ourselves, how, when they come, they identify themselvesas
being part of Cathedral life even at this kind of distance. | would include in this many
members of other Christian traditions. | am conscious that most Cathedrals have the
potential of being truly ecumenical centres because the Cathedral, more than any other
ecclesiastical building, belongs to the Christian community as a whole and bridges the
centuries. In this respect itis probably necessary for Cathedrals to be less rather than more

strict about the kind of worship which is possible to construct within a Cathedral tradition.
While it is important for Cathedrals to enshrine all that is best of the Anglican tradition, the
history and the space that they represent can often be a very powerful expression of the
Christian community beyond denominational boundaries. For this to happen Cathedrals
need to be ready to be places of experiment and adventure rather than simply feelmgthﬂt

they must maintain at all costs their own tradition. Cathedrals have the opportunity NS
breaking down barriers between different Christian traditions and this can be done, even -

if it means changing statutes to incorporate ecumenical representatives and bodlesylthh 5
the community of Cathedral life. To be able to give such people and their groupingsd
significance and solidarity in the context of a Cathedral maybe one of the most help
contributions to the ecumenical effort that the Church of England can make.

But even within Anglicanism there are many styles and theologies. A Cathedral should be

a place where Anglo Catholics, Evangelicals, Charismatics can not only feel at home but
also make it their home. The best of each tradition should sometimes be displayed at-
Cathedral occasions. While Cathedral musical tradition has a particular place in Anglican
spirituality and must be maintained, musicians should be ready to be flexible so thatgood
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subjects together with the fact that both of them are part of th
vital subjects for a Cathedral ministry. | believe this is as true ¢
parties and through educational centres in Cathedrals as it is for the
Now if the building and its furnishings say a great deal about these
question arises as to how far we can continue the educational proc
pilgrimage through the community life which is at the heart of the
be spedific areas where the team as a whole can say and demonstrate ir
witness something of the Christian Faith. B,
I believe that this understanding also has implications for the practical ways in
treat visitors and tourists. Routing of Cathedrals for visitors, the signings and the qu
guided tours, all must be geared to a demonstration of the community life

Cathedral and the things which countless visitors in all Cathedrals have
consumate interest to them.

When | have been talking about a place and purpose and pattern, the heart of community
life, 1 have implied that an educational process is necessary for all the circles of
community life which are part of the Cathedral. A visitor is not detached from this
community but | believe in a very real sense becomes a part of the community for the
period of their visit. '
What | have been talking about, therefore, is entry points into community life and into an
adventure of Christian exploration. Most Cathedrals thankfully are asking questions and
providing some answers about the part that they have to play in the Decade of
Evangelism. One of the best definitions of evangelism that | know is that it is discovering
what God is doing and seeking to do it with him. Through a Cathedral God is doing many
things, through stone, and glass, and art; through music; through worship, liturgy and
movement, through education and exhibition and drama. But 1 do not believe that any of
these things will, in themselves, provide entry points unless they are rooted in strong
community life which is based on the place, the purpose and the pattern of all that
happens in the Cathedral. God is working there and when we discover what he is doing
there then we must try to do it with him.

The Pilgrims Association is well named, for | hope in your minds it depicts not only a
pilgrimage of people who come to visit the Cathedrals and our ministry to them, butitalso
depicts a pilgrimage in which we are all involved in our use of the Cathedral. The work is -
never finished and there are always things that we are longing to do. In the real sense as |
mentioned it earlier, the Cathedral is never finished. We all have visions of how we can
build up this in material terms and in people terms, its continuing life and expanding
ministry. These hopes and visions will not become a reality unless we see ourselvesas
members of a community — given significance for ourselves and the solidarity of
belonging to that community. In this way our own pilgrimage of faith will be expanding all
the time. And also in that way we shall be making our own increasing contribution to the
community life which is the most powerful thing that a Cathedral affords. e
The Rt. Rev. Michael Turnbull
Bishop of Rochester :

%7l

12






Fig. 1. View of the west range of the cloister, from the north (JPA

Fig. 2. South end of the former west range, from the mnh UPM). i
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transept. A wooden door protects the jambs — only the south one is spla 2
rectangular window, long blocked up®”. Jambs and blocking are painted %
masonry joints and red flowers, one placed in the middle of each ‘ashlar
painting is probably rather late in date, possibly from the late thirteenth oready‘ '
century, as itis similar to the large area of painted ashlar on the wall above the ¢anon.
the tomb, usually attributed to Bishop John of Bradfield (1278-1283), in the south ¢}
aisle. ' choi
The evidence from the surviving remains at the south end, and Alexander’s depicﬁm

the north end, suggest the west range was constructed in the first quarter of the ty, %
century, and therefore could well be the work of Ernulf. If a date can be SUSSEStedwkh

some certainty, it is more difficult to reconstruct the plan or dimensions of the original
range.

Part of this range was excavated again in 1983, when a porch was built outside the portal
between the south choir aisle and the cloister’”. The stepped foundation of the east wall
was partly uncovered; it was over three feet (1.08m) thick at the top. '

This same area had earlier been subject to extensive but partial excavation when |, T.
Irvine was underpinning the east and south walls of the major transept arm. At that time
(1872), he reported finding a wall running parallel to the south facade, which he thought
was the north wall of Gundulf’s chapter house®". This discovery led Wm. H. St. J. Hope,
with George Payne, to excavate yet again. A wall of barely three foot thickness, was
uncovered thirteen feet from the transept facade; it extended westwards for a length of
forty-seven feet (from the south-east corner of the transept arm) before being ‘lost’ in later
brick walls (of a former prebendal house?). Built of Kentish rag, ‘with some tufa’, it was
pierced by five semicircular arches of which two were blocked (the third and fourth).
Hope reported that the north face of the wall was rough and that the ‘upper parts’ (of the
arches?) had been removed, while there were remains of plaster above the arches on the
south face??. Although he thought the wall was too thin to have ‘been carried up any
height’ orto have ‘supported an upper floor’, he described no architectural details which
would date the wall.

The wall with five arches in itis difficult to explain, especially as Hope though it too thin to
be very high (thatis, no higher than the sill of the south transept facade windows?)*’. The
number of arches and their width — four feet, with piers of three feet between them —
suggest an arcade between two similar (interior?) spaces. Yet the plastered face suggests
an interior space to the south, the rough northern face an exterior space between it and
the transept face. The position of this wall seems to relate to the east-west wing which
appears on the maps of 1772 and 1801 raises the possibility that, despite its being pUIltof
Kentish rag and tafa, it could be a post-Dissolution construction, associated with the i3
domestic use of the range.

Hope reconstructed a total width for the range of only thirty feet — including the thickness
of the walls (internal dimension about twenty-one feet)**, much narrower than the south
range (over thirty feet internally®®) or the east range (forty-one feet seven and one h.alf
inches internally?®). The narrowness of the west range could be explained by the desire
not to block the lower windows of the south wall of the transept: thus the west wall of the
west range lies just a little west of the transept’s east wall. However, this explanation only
holds true for the existing south arm of the Gothic transept which does have wmc!ows ata
low level. In the context of a ‘normal’ layout in the eleventh or twelfth century, In which
the cloister and monastic buildings were located south of the nave, the end wall of thet-
transept was usually abutted for its entire length by the east range of the cloister so tha:)
there could be no windows in the lower half of the wall. Thus, there would be nst
compelling reason in the Romanesque period for the west range (in place Oftﬁg\::st
range) not to abut the south end of the transept. In the specific case of Rochester,
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Forinstance, Wm. H. St.J. Hope, ‘The architectural history of the cathedral chyrel, i
and monastery of St. Andrew at Rochester’, Arch. Cant., xxiii (1898), p.212 (or,as
published separately, The Architectural History of the Cathedral Church andg

Monastery of St. Andrew at Rochester [London 1900], p.19; as Part Il of Hope's
study also appeared the same year, in Arch. Cant., xxiv, subsequent references
will be given to both versions, because they have different pagination, as AC189g
for Part 1, AC1900 for Part Il or L1900 for the complete work); G. H. Palmer, The
Cathedral Church of Rochester: A Description of its Fabric and a Brief History of
the Episcopal. See (Bell’s Cathedral Series; London, 2nd edn, 1899), p.56; F. H.
Fairweather, ‘Gundulf’s cathedral and priory church of St. Andrew, Rochester:
some critical remarks on the hitherto accepted plan’, Archaeological Journal,
Ixxxvi (1929), pp.197, 205.

British Library, Cotton MS. Nero D.I1.f. 109v[110v] (H. Wharton, Anglia Sacra, 2
vols [London 1691], 1, p.342: ‘Fecit etiam Dormitorium, Capitulum,
Refectorium’); B.L., Cotton MS. Vespasian A.XXIl, f. 88r[86r] (). Thorpe,
Registrum Roffense [London 1769], p.120: “Ernulfus episcopus, pater noster post
episcopum Gundulfum, fecit dormitorium, capitulum, refectorium’.).

Hope, op. cit., (AC1900)p.7/(L1900)p. 142, supposed the east range of Gundulf’s
cloister was utilized as the west range of Ernulf’s.

Hope, op. cit., (AC1900)pp.7, 35/(L1900)pp.142, 170; Palmer, op. cit., pp.9-10,
56

Perhaps the first to recognize its true date was J. Zarnecki, ‘Regional Schools of
English Sculpture in the Twelfth Century: the Southern School and the
Herefordshire School” (Ph.D. dissertation, University of London, 1950), pp.189-
90; see also G. Zarnecki, English Romanesque Sculpture: 1066-1140 (London
1951), pp.18,23,37,pl. 70; T.S.R. Boase, English Art, 1100- 1216 (Oxford 1953),
pp.60-1. The later date of the decorative motifs has been confirmed during the
recent cleaning: T. Tatton-Brown, ‘The east range of the cloisters’, Friends of
Rochester Cathedral: Report for 1988, pp.4-8.

B.L., Cotton MS. Vespasian A.XXII, f. 29v[28v]; Gervase of Canterbury, Opera
Historica, Wm. Stubbs, ed., 2 vols (Rolls Series, LXXIII: London 1879-80), 1, p.100
(‘Tertio nonas Junii combusta est ecclesia Sancti Andreae Roffensis et tota civitas
cum officinis episcopi et monachorum’.).

The est range is described in detail by Hope, op. cit., (AC1900)pp.35-45/
(L1900)pp.170-80.

B.L., Cotton MS. Vespasian A.XXII, f. 90r[89r] (Thorpe, Registrum Roffense,
p.122: ‘Lavatorium et hostium refectorii fieri fecit ...".); Hope, op. cit,
(AC1900)pp.11, 30, 46/(L1900) pp.146, 165, 181, pl. VI.

B.L., Cotton MS. Faustina B.V., ff. 56v[57v] (Wharton, Anglia Sacra, |,
pp. 371,373: ‘Refectorio etlongo pristrino noviter edificandis.. . .; ...nunctamen
specialiter ad inchoandum novum Refectorium . . ."). The south range is described
in detail by Hope, op cit., (AC1900)pp.46-50/(L190-0)pp.181-5; the warming
room may have been at the south end of the east range (Hope, [AC1900] p.44/
[L1900] p.179).

W. A. Forsyth, ‘Rochester Cathedral: restoration of the Norman cloister’, Friend’s
of Rochester Cathedral: Fourth Annual Report(1939), pp.20-2, and pls. facing 15,
19.

The shafts — and angle of the walls — are best preserved at the south. The north-
east angle has vanished altogether, while of the rapidly crumbling north-west
respond, only the angle-shaft’s capital remains; there is no sign of the north cross
wall.
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Gilbert Scott®, who was restoring the :
ideas. Mr. James lrvine, SCOtt’ssclerk f)afﬁv've:r?sl, ar:w;zee:ms:;tbc‘:\tot?ethi ,' ol ha‘:d and
green painting on the canopies over the open arcade but could not re::ord it rfopeﬂv
because ‘Clayton & Bells man would not hear of it (saving the wood) or stay hispwork of
destruction™, Mr. lrvine also recorded the destruction of the ancient canopy over the
dean’s stall which, as the Kent Archaeological society observed, had ‘surmounted the
Stall of the Mediaeval Bishops of Rochester and has so remained for 600 years, or more”’.
The panelfrom the back of the stall, which Sir Gilbert wished to retain in situ but which the
chapter ordered removed, has been placed under glass in the south choir transept™®.

Not many years later an outrageous proposal by dean Hole was fortunately defeated by
the united opposition of the chapter. Dean Scott' died on 2nd December, 1887 and was
SUCK ¢~(~dg:d by Reynolds Hole'“. By the summer of 1889 the cathedral architect, J. L.
Pearson’’, had produced a design for dean Hole which the latter expected to become the
memorial to dean Scott. Pearson’s design was for, in dean Hole’s words, “substituting an
openscreen of Stone for the block of masonry, &c., which now divides the nave from the
choirin our cathedral, and for the removal of the organ' into a chamber to be built for it
inthe south choir aisle. This work would have also required the south wall oft he choir to
have been broken through. Dean Hole, in a letter written to the Society of Antiquaries on
St john Baptist’s day 1889, stated how “disappointed’ he was ‘to write that Mr. Pearsons
design” . .. "has been rejected by a majority of the Chapter'®.

Had this work proceeded one of the most ancient screens in the country would have
been destroyed and Rochester would have had inflicted on it a screen in the manner of
the abomination of desolations which presently separates the nave from the choir in the
cathedral church of Durham.

When each reader enters the cathedral he will at once be conscious that it is much more
beautifully ordered than was the case in 1725 and they will also see that in this century the
dean and chapter have ever striven to enhance the cathedral as a place of prayer and
praise but not at the expense of the building.

I am much obliged to the dean and chapter for their permission to quote so extensively
from their archives.
David A. H. Cleggett
All Souls’ Day, 1992

1. Claget, Nicholas, DD., preferred to the deanery of Rochester 1st February, 1724 (Le
Neve, Fasti Ecclesiae Anglicanae 1541-1857, p.56), nominated bishop of St. David's,
1732, translated to Exeter in 1742, Claget, a member of an old Kentish family spelling
its name Clagett, Claggett, Cleggett, etc., died 1747 and is buried in St. Margaret’s
church, Westminster. : :
The inventory quoted in this paper is among the archwes of the dean and chapter in
the County Archives branch office at Strood. It is entitled; \

An Inventory of all the goods belonging to the Cathedral Church of Christ and
the Blessed Virgin Mary of Rochester taken this thirteenth day of December
Anno Dni 1725 and exhibited to the Rev. Mr. John Robinson (i) One of the
Prebendaries and Treasurer of the said Cathedral Church by the Reverend
Nicolas Claget Doctor in Divinity Dean of the said Cathedral Church. (DRc/
Emf1 f7/1,2).

(i)  Robinson, John, MA, presented to the 2nd prebendal stall by the; 8th January, 1713/
14, instituted by the bishop same date, installed 11th January. Died 17th April, 1754
having held his stall for forty years. Buried at Copford, Essex. (Le Neve p.63)."

3 Baskett, John, (d.1742), king’s printer. His 1717, two volgme, edition of the Bible is a

work of great typographical beauty but was carelessly printed.
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The bishop’s throne is still furnished with purple cushions.

Ullock, Henry, DD, presented to the deanery by the king and queen 4th April 1689
instituted by the bishop 8th April, installed 9th April. Died 20th June, 1706 and ;
buried at Leybourne where his monument may be seen. (Le Neve p.56).

6. Scott, Sir George Gilbert (1811-1878), architect. Among his secular commissions the
most famous is the Foreign Office. There are few cathedrals or major churches in the
land which he did not work in.

Irvine, James Thomas. Between 1874-1894 Irvine was constantly at the cathedral
supervising the progress of work. In the chapter archives (DRc/Emf 77/134) are the
rough drawings Mr. Irvine made of all parts of the cathedral,
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8. DRc/Emf 77/13.
9 DRc/Emf 64/54.
10 DRc¢/Emf 77/73.

1. Scott, Robert (1811-1887), lexicographer, Master of Balliol from 1854-1870. His
Greek-English lexicon was a noted work occ upying him constantly from 1836 until
his death. Scott was a prebendary of Exeter from 1845-1866. Preferred to the
deanery of Rochester, 1870.

2 Hole, Samuel Reynolds (1819-1904), vicar of Caunton, Nottinghamshire 1850-1887,
prebendary of Lincoln 1875-1887, preferred to the deanery of Rochester 10th
December, 1887. A noted Tractarian. Dean Hole was a great gardener and a founder
of the National, later Royal, Rose Society.

13. Pearson, John Loughborough (1817-1897), architect. His magnum opus is Truro
cathedral. One of the finest architects of the 19th century revival in gothic
architecture. His work at Rochester included the west side of Choir screen and the
underpining of the west front. Examples of his fine work may be seen in many places.
An example of his rural work is the exquisite church at South Dalton in Yorkshire.

. DRc/Emf 64/5/5.

15. Drc/Emf 64/5/5.

David Cleggett is historical adviser to the Leeds Castle Foundation. He has been a
member of the cathedral congregation since 1959, and is a member of the editorial board
of the Friends Report, to which he has contributed a number of articles. He also
contributes to the journal of the Virginia Historical Society, of which he is amember. He is
a retired banker.

THE WARNER MONUMENTS

In the Chapel of St. John the Baptist are three large marble monuments, of the
seventeenth century, to members of the same family. That to Bishop John Warner, who
died in 1666, is by Joshua Marshall; that to Archdeacon John Lee Warner, who died in
1679, is by John Shorthose; but the sculptor of the third memorial, that to the
Archdeacon’s son, Lee Warner, who died in 1698, has not been identified.

For some months, Mrs. Diana Holbrook has been researching among the Cathedral
archives for references to the building and its contents, and one extract that she found,
dated September 1701, reads: ‘Rec’d of Mr. Warner Lee’s exec. by ye hands of Mr.
Broxup, stonecutter, for setting up in Merton Chapel a Monument to Mr. Warner Lee.
£10°. (Ref. DRc/FTb/35).

This obviously refers to the fee charged by the Chapter. The reference in itself is not
conclusive that Broxup was the sculptor of the monument, but some years ago, | was
looking at a large pen and ink and wash drawing, among the Sackville papers deposited in
the Kent Archives at Maidstone. This is the original design for a monument to Sir John
Knatchbull (died 1698), in Mersham church, near Ashford, and which was commissioned
by Edward Sackville on 8 May, 1700, from one John Broxup. The drawing is for mural
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| .1‘Isn thought, it a (‘rdflsn)‘i n wanted to show he really knew his stuff, making a spiral pillar

might present him with just the right challenge. Think of Roslin Chapel!

The book is fully illustrated — indeed, some photographs are duplicated. But it would

sgnously und(erdluz* it to describe it as a coffee table book. Some of the black and white
pictures are alittle old and perhaps miss the crispness of modern photographs. The colour
plates (added as a later thought?) though are fine and lovely to look at, and more than
once offer better versions of subjects in the black and white prints.

Th('r_e are (‘(')pious notes, and a full bibliography, with books for the general reader
helpfully indicated.

Rmdor§ of this. report will not be disappointed if they look for Rochester and some of its
names in the index and bibliography. But it is hardly surprising to find parallels and

likenesses drawn between Canterbury and her country cousin.
John Armson
Canon Librarian

MEMBERSHIP REPORT

It would be nice to be able to report a greatincrease, but perhaps the static situation isthe
best that could be hoped for in the current climate. We show very much the same picture
as last year: in this financial year we have gained 54 new members and lost 36.

Of course, the resignations include members who, sadly, have died, and some of these
most closely associated with the Friends, are mentioned in the Chairman’s Report. We
remember them and others with gratitude.

Since the A.G.M., we have been trying to widen awareness of our organisation through a
public relations initiative, which has included contact with the press, fund raising events,
publicity boards, and the display of information in public places.

However, it is worthwhile repeating the message given often before: the best way
forward would be that each existing member should aim to enrol at least one new
member each year. We should all be proud of our involvementin the work of the Friends,
and act as ambassadors to people we meet.

Hazel White

New Members Harries, Mrs. J. M.
Allen, Mr. F. Hebron, Mr. D. C.
Crickenden, Mrs. R. Hetherington, Mr. S. A. G.
Cox, Miss L. Hetherington, Mrs. B. E.
Clout, Mr. N. N. Hiscock, Mr. R.
Calvert, Dr. M. Hiscock, Mrs. P.
Clifford, Mr. A. J. Jennings, Mr. K. H. A.
Dakers, Green, Brett Jennings, Mrs. J.
Downton, Mr. P. L. Lester-Mallinson, Miss E.
Epps, Mr. J. Lloyds of London
Epps, Mrs. A. Miles, Rev. G. C. M.
Foreman, Mr. D. R. Miles, Mrs.
Foreman, Mrs. C. Mackey, Mrs. B.
Gerard Pearse, Medway School of Music

Rear Admiral J. R. S. CB., Millett, Mrs. A. P.
Gerard Pearse, Mrs. B. J. Miskin, Mrs. A.
Gunner, Mrs. M. Moffat, Mrs. J. E.
Hamilton, Mrs. E. Murrell, Mrs. B. L.
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